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and Conduit, Long Beach, CA. The final
phase of the investigation was
scheduled by the Commission following
notification of a preliminary
determination by Commerce that
imports of light-walled rectangular pipe
and tube from Turkey were being sold
at LTFV within the meaning of section
733(b) of the Act (19 U.S.C. 1673b(b)).
Notice of the scheduling of the final
phase of the Commission’s investigation
and of a public hearing to be held in
connection therewith was given by
posting copies of the notice in the Office
of the Secretary, U.S. International
Trade Commission, Washington, DC,
and by publishing the notice in the
Federal Register of February 5, 2008 (72
FR 6740). The hearing was held in
Washington, DC, on April 11, 2008, and
all persons who requested the
opportunity were permitted to appear in
person or by counsel.

The Commission transmitted its
determination in this investigation to
the Secretary of Commerce on May 23,
2008. The views of the Commission are
contained in USITC Publication 4001
(May 2008), entitled

Light-Walled Rectangular Pipe and
Tube from Turkey: Investigation No.
731-TA-1121 (Final).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: May 23, 2008.

Marilyn R. Abbott,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. E8-12036 Filed 5-29-08; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

[Inv. No. 337-TA-650]

In the Matter of Certain Coaxial Cable
Connectors and Components Thereof
and Products Containing Same; Notice
of Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade
Commission.

ACTION: Institution of investigation
pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1337.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a
complaint was filed with the U.S.
International Trade Commission on
April 28, 2008, under section 337 of the
Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19
U.S.C. 1337, on behalf of John
Mezzalingua Associates, Inc. d/b/a PPC,
Inc. of East Syracuse, New York. A letter
amending the complaint was filed on
May 19, 2008. The complaint, as
amended, alleges violations of section
337 based upon the importation into the
United States, the sale for importation,
and the sale within the United States

after importation of certain coaxial cable
connectors and components thereof and
products containing same that infringe
certain claims of U.S. Patent No.
6,558,194, U.S. Patent No. 5,470,257,
U.S. Patent No. D440,539, and U.S.
Patent No. D519,076. The complaint
further alleges that an industry in the
United States exists as required by
subsection (a)(2) of section 337.

The complainant requests that the
Commission institute an investigation
and, after the investigation, issue an
exclusion order and cease and desist
orders.

ADDRESSES: The complaint and
amendment, except for any confidential
information contained therein, are
available for inspection during official
business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.)
in the Office of the Secretary, U.S.
International Trade Commission, 500 E
Street, SW., Room 112, Washington, DC
20436, telephone 202—-205-2000.
Hearing impaired individuals are
advised that information on this matter
can be obtained by contacting the
Commission’s TDD terminal on
202-205-1810. Persons with mobility
impairments who will need special
assistance in gaining access to the
Commission should contact the Office
of the Secretary at 202—205-2000.
General information concerning the
Commission may also be obtained by
accessing its Internet server at http://
www.usitc.gov. The public record for
this investigation may be viewed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at http://edis.usitc.gov.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Kevin Baer, Esq., Office of Unfair Import
Investigations, U.S. International Trade
Commission, telephone (202) 205-2221.

Authority: The authority for institution of
this investigation is contained in section 337
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and
in section 210.10 of the Commission’s Rules
of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10
(2008).

Scope of Investigation: Having
considered the complaint, the U.S.
International Trade Commission, on
May 22, 2008, ordered that—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended, an investigation be instituted
to determine whether there is a
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of
section 337 in the importation into the
United States, the sale for importation,
or the sale within the United States after
importation of certain coaxial cable
connectors or components thereof or
products containing same that infringe
one or more of claims 1 and 2 of U.S.
Patent No. 6,558,194; claims 1-5 and 10
of U.S. Patent No. 5,470,257; the claim

of U.S. Patent No. D440,539; and the

claim of U.S. Patent No. D519,076; and

whether an industry in the United

States exists as required by subsection

(a)(2) of section 337;

(2) For the purpose of the
investigation so instituted, the following
are hereby named as parties upon which
this notice of investigation shall be
served:

(a) The complainant is—

John Mezzalingua Associates, Inc., d/b/
a PPC, Inc., 6176 E. Molloy Road, East
Syracuse, New York 13057.

(b) The respondents are the following
entities alleged to be in violation of
section 337, and are the parties upon
which the complaint is to be served:
Aska Communication Corp., 2911

Center Port Circle, Pompano Beach,

Florida 33065.

Edali Industrial Corp., No. 70—6 Shia-
Kwei Rou-shan, Tau-Sui, Taipei
Hsien, Taiwan.

Fu Ching Technical Industrial Co., Ltd.,
No. 6, Lane 88 Sec. 1, Chung Shin
Road, Wuku Hsiang, Taipei Hsein,
Taiwan.

Gem Electronics, 920A River Street,
Kennedy Industrial Park, Windsor,
Connecticut 06095.

Hanjiang Fei Yu Electronics Equipment
Factory, No. 1 East Hongxing Road,
Honggiao Street, Tougiao Town,
Hanjiang District, Yangzhou, Jiangsu
Province, China.

Zhongguang Electronics, No. 1 East
Hongxing Road, Honggiao Street,
Tougiao Town, Hanjiang District,
Yangzhou, Jiangsu Province, China.

Yangzhou Zhongguang Electronics Co.,
Ltd., No. 1 East Hongxing Road,
Honggiao Street, Tougiao Town,
Hanjiang District, Yangzhou, Jiangsu
Province, China.

Yangzhou Zhongguang Foreign Trade
Co., Ltd., No. 1 East Hongxing Road,
Honggiao Street, Tougiao Town,
Hanjiang District, Yangzhou, Jiangsu
Province, China.

(c) The Commission investigative
attorney, party to this investigation, is
Kevin Baer, Esq., Office of Unfair Import
Investigations, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street, SW., Suite
401, Washington, DC 20436; and

(3) For the investigation so instituted,
the Honorable Charles E. Bullock is
designated as the presiding
administrative law judge.

Responses to the complaint and the
notice of investigation must be
submitted by the named respondents in
accordance with section 210.13 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to
19 CFR 201.16(d) and 210.13(a), such
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responses will be considered by the
Commission if received not later than 20
days after the date of service by the
Commission of the complaint and the
notice of investigation. Extensions of
time for submitting responses to the
complaint and the notice of
investigation will not be granted unless
good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely
response to each allegation in the
complaint and in this notice may be
deemed to constitute a waiver of the
right to appear and contest the
allegations of the complaint and this
notice, and to authorize the
administrative law judge and the
Commission, without further notice to
the respondent, to find the facts to be as
alleged in the complaint and this notice
and to enter an initial determination
and a final determination containing
such findings, and may result in the
issuance of an exclusion order or a cease
and desist order or both directed against
the respondent.

By order of the Commission.

Issued: May 23, 2008.

Marilyn R. Abbott,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. E8-12028 Filed 5-29-08; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging of Consent Decree
Pursuant to the Clean Air Act

Notice is hereby given pursuant to the
Clean Air Act (the “Act”), 42 U.S.C.
7413(g), and 28 CFR 50.7, that on May
15, 2008, a proposed Consent Decree, in
United States v. Michigan Sugar Co.,
Civil No. 08-12125 (E.D. Mich.), was
lodged with the United States District
Court for the Eastern District of
Michigan, Bay City, Michigan Division.
In this action, the United States sought
injunctive relief and civil penalties
against Michigan Sugar for violations of
the Prevention of Significant
Deterioration (“PSD”) provisions of the
Act, 42 U.S.C. 7470-7492, and the Plan
Requirements for Nonattainment Areas
(“NSR”) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. 7501—
7515, and the federally approved and
enforceable Michigan SIP. Michigan
Sugar commenced construction of a new
natural gas-fired Pulp Dryer No. 3 at its
Bay City Facility in 1984 without
obtaining a PSD permit that addressed
carbon monoxide (“CO”’) emissions as
required by section 165 of the Act, 42
U.S.C. 7475, 40 CFR 52.21(1), and the
Michigan SIP. At the same time, because
Bay County was nonattainment for
ozone, Michigan Sugar failed to obtain

an NSR permit that addressed volatile
organic compounds (‘“VOC”) emissions,
as required by section 173 of the Act, 42
U.S.C. 7503, and R 336.1201 of the
Michigan Air Pollution Control Rules
that are part of the federally enforceable
Michigan SIP. Further, in 1995,
Michigan Sugar increased its annual
hours of operation at its Bay City facility
beyond the federally enforceable permit
conditions for all its Pulp Dryers, Nos.
1, 2, and 3, triggering emissions
increases, without obtaining a PSD
permit addressing CO emissions, and an
NSR permit addressing VOC emissions
as required by the Act, federal
regulations and the Michigan SIP.

Under the Consent Decree, Michigan
Sugar shall: (1) Operate and maintain a
Steam Dryer (or alternative non-air
pollutant emitting sugar beet pulp
drying technology) for processing sugar
beet pulp at its Bay City Facility; (2)
permanently shut down and
decommission its three natural gas-fired
Pulp Dryers on a schedule that
commenced in December 2007 and will
end in May 2014; (3) submit
application(s) for a Title V permit
modification and/or other appropriate
permits under the Act for its Bay City
Facility and cooperate fully with
Michigan Department of Environmental
Quality (“MDEQ”) officials processing
the application(s); (4) comply with
terms and conditions of the MDEQ
approved permit(s); and, (5) pay a civil
penalty of $210,000.

The Department of Justice will
receive, for a period of thirty (30) days
from the date of this publication,
comments relating to the proposed
Consent Decree. Comments should be
addressed to the Assistant Attorney
General, Environment and Natural
Resources Division, and either e-mailed
to pubcomment-ees.enrd@usdoj.gov or
mailed to United States Department of
Justice, P.O. Box 7611, Washington, DC
20044-7611, and should refer to United
States v. Michigan Sugar Co., Civil No.
08-12125 (E.D. Mich.), and DOJ
Reference No. 90-5—2—-1-08726.

The proposed Consent Decree may be
examined at: (1) The Office of the
United States Attorney for the Eastern
District of Michigan, Bay City, Michigan
Division, 101 First St., Suite 200, Bay
City, MI 48708 (989-895-5712); and (2)
the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (Region 5), 77 West
Jackson Blvd., Chicago, IL 60604—3507
(contact: Nidhi O’Meara (312—886—
0568).

During the public comment period,
the proposed Consent Decree may also
be examined on the following U.S.
Department of Justice Web site, http://
www.usdoj.gov/enrd/

Consent_Decrees.html. A copy of the
proposed Consent Decree may also be
obtained by mail from the Consent
Decree Library, U.S. Department of
Justice, P.O. Box 7611, Washington, DC
20044-7611 or by faxing or e-mailing a
request to Tonia Fleetwood
(tonia.fleetwood@usdoj.gov), fax no.
(202) 514-0097, phone confirmation no.
(202) 514-1547. In requesting a copy
from the Consent Decree Library, please
refer to the referenced case and DOJ
Reference Number and enclose a check
in the amount of $9.25 for the Consent
Decree and Appendix A (37 pages, at 25
cents per page reproduction costs),
made payable to the U.S. Treasury or, if
by email or fax, forward a check in that
amount to the Consent Decree Library at
the stated address.

William D. Brighton,

Environmental Enforcement Section,
Environment and Natural Resources Division.

[FR Doc. E8—12037 Filed 5—29-08; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4410-15-P

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Notice of Lodging Proposed
Settlement

In accordance with Departmental
Policy, 28 CFR 50.7, notice is hereby
given that a proposed Settlement in the
case of United States v. Gerke
Excavating, Inc., Case Number 03—-C
0074—-C (W.D. Wis.), was lodged with
the United States District Court for the
Western District of Wisconsin on May
15, 2008.

This proposed Settlement concerns a
complaint filed by the United States
against Gerke Excavating, Inc., pursuant
to sections 309(b) and (d) of the Clean
Water Act (“CWA”), 33 U.S.C. 1319(b)
and (d), for civil penalties and
injunctive relief resulting from the
discharge of pollutants into waters of
the United States without a permit, in
violation of sections 301(a) and 404 of
the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 1311(a) and 1344.
The proposed Settlement incorporates
Gerke’s previous agreement to an
injunction and to restore the impacted
areas, a stipulation that CWA
jurisdiction exists over the impacted
area, and a civil penalty.

The Department of Justice will accept
written comments relating to this
proposed Settlement for thirty (30) days
from the date of publication of this
Notice. Please address comments to
Leslie K. Herje, Assistant United States
Attorney, Civil Division Chief, P.O. Box
1585, Madison, Wisconsin 53701-1585,
and refer to United States v. Gerke
Excavating, Inc.
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